Freedom of Information Act 2000/Environmental Information Regulations 2004  
re: Adapted Housing Stock

Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
Please could you provide the following data for your housing stock, ideally broken down by year for the past 5 years.
1. Fully Adapted Properties Converted to Non-Adapted:
o The number of fully adapted council-owned properties that have been converted to non-adapted status.
o Please include details of which properties, if available.

Answer:

In the last five financial years, a total of seven different properties have been re-categorised from “fully wheelchair accessible” to “partially adapted”. The definition of these categories is as follows:
· FULLY WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE – Level access into and around the property (could be via a lift) plus a level access shower, widened doorways and suitable turning circles for a wheelchair user as a minimum.
· PARTIALLY ADAPTED – Level access into and around the property (could be via a lift) plus a level access or step-in shower.

The breakdown of the seven properties by year is as follows:

· 2020-2021:                        nil

· 2021-2022:                        1

· 2022-2023:                        3

· 2023-2024:                        2

· 2024-2025:                        1

There have been no cases in the 2025-2026 current year-to-date.
In addition to the seven cases listed above, we did have one additional property which was briefly downgraded from “fully wheelchair accessible” to “partially adapted” in 2023-24, but where the fully wheelchair accessible grading was then reinstated three weeks later. It remains fully wheelchair accessible.

Details of individual addresses is exempt from disclosure as section 40 (personal information) apply. Individuals living in these properties expect their addresses to be private than to be publicly disclosed.  The Council judges that disclosure to the wider world under the Act would constitute a breach of Data Protection principles, notably Principle 1-fair, lawful and transparent processing and Principle 2 – processing for specified, legitimate and explicit purposes.

2. Right to Buy – Fully Adapted Properties:
o The number of fully adapted properties sold under the Right to Buy scheme.

A total of six “fully wheelchair accessible” properties have been sold under the right-to-buy scheme during the time period stipulated. A breakdown by year shows:

· 2020-2021:        1

· 2021-2022:        1

· 2022-2023:        2

· 2023-2024:        1

· 2024-2025:        1

There have been no cases during the current 2025-2026 year-to-date.


3. Conversions to Fully Adapted Properties:
o The number of non-adapted council-owned properties that have been converted to fully adapted properties.

A total of thirty five properties have been converted into fully wheelchair accessible properties during the period analysed:

· 2020-2021:        0

· 2021-2022:        12

· 2022-2023:        4

· 2023-2024:        10

· 2024-2025:        9

There have been no cases recorded in the current 2025-2026 year-to-date.


4. New Adapted Properties:
o The number of newly built or newly acquired fully adapted properties added to the council's housing stock.
The Council does not hold this information and is advising you as required under Section 1.1 of the Act.

We are unable to identify instances where a property was already “fully wheelchair accessible” at the time we added it to our council stock. Properties would only be assessed for wheelchair compliance after we had acquired them.
5. Discretion used 
o The number of times the housing options service (service manager, director, officer etc) have used their discretion to allow someone to join the housing register to a non-qualifying person. Please provide full details of each occasion, discretion was used.
o The number of times the housing options service have used their discretion to modify bidding rules to allow someone to bid on non-adapted accommodation (see 5.1.3 of allocations policy) and successfully adapted it? Please provide full details of each occasion, discretion was used.

In the last 12 months there have been 33 occasions where non-qualifying applicants have been permitted to join the register by exception. All 33 were applicants who did not meet the local connection criteria.

The allocations policy states:

Applicants to the Housing Register must meet the Leicester City Requirement (local connection) by satisfying at least one of the following criteria: 

• Applicants living within the city of Leicester must be able to produce documentary evidence that they have used a residential address within the City as their settled home for 2 consecutive years immediately prior to their housing application* 

• Applicants that have previously lived in settled accommodation in the city of Leicester for 3 consecutive years or more out of the last 5 years *

• Applicants currently working within the city of Leicester and have been for the last 12 months 

• People who are aged over 18 and approved as a homeless person under Part VII of the Housing Act 1996 

• Applicants who need to give or receive support to direct family members who have been living in the city for the past 5 years. Direct family members include husbands, wives, civil partners, parents, sons, daughters, brothers and sisters. 

• Asylum seekers who have been dispersed to the City by the National Asylum Support service (NASS) and whose status changes to that of refugee, or asylum seekers who have been awarded exceptional or indefinite leave to remain whilst living in the city 

• Persons who have previously served in the armed forces and they make an application for housing within 5 years of their discharge 

• Bereaved / Divorced / Separated spouses or civil partners of Service personnel who are required to move out of accommodation provided by the Ministry of Defence 

• Prisoners released from prison who meet one of the above criteria prior to them entering prison 

• Applicants currently living in unsettled accommodation (e.g. a hostel) within Leicester City who can demonstrate they had previously lived in permanent/settled accommodation in Leicester Updated 23 June 2023 City for 3 consecutive years or more out of the last 5 years from the last date of their last settled accommodation 

• Council or Housing Association tenants who need to move for work related reasons 

• Victims of domestic abuse that have fled to a refuge in the city from another local authority area * Hostels, Nightshelters, ‘Care of Addresses’ & No Fixed Abode do not meet the requirement, as they are not classified as settled accommodation.

Whilst the applicants did not meet the above criteria, there were exceptional circumstances present in each case which led to approval for them to join the register. 


6. 130 Mere Road, Leicester, 
o Is this currently a council owned property?
o If not, has it ever been a council owned property and was it sold under the right to buy scheme?
o Was this an adapted property, including an in floor lift?
o Has this been converted to a non-adapted property

7. 1 and 3 Hydra Walk, Leicester
o Are these council owned properties?
o Are these adapted properties?
o Were these converted from council owned office's to council own residential homes?
o What banding priority are the current tenants of 1 and 3 Hydra Walk?

In respect of Qs 6 & 7, the information is exempt from disclosure because it is personal information of someone else (a third party). Exemption section 40 (2) (personal data) applies.

Personal data relating to a third party (someone other than the person requesting the information) is not for disclosure to the wider world, which is how any such disclosure must be viewed.

The Council judges that disclosure to the wider world under the Act would constitute a breach of Data Protection principles, notably Principle 1-fair, lawful and transparent processing and Principle 2 – processing for specified, legitimate and explicit purposes.
8. Band 1 Applicants Awaiting Fully Adapted Properties:
o How many individuals or families are currently on the housing register in Band 1 and are waiting specifically for a fully adapted property?
For each of these applicants, please provide:
o The date they joined the housing register.
o The length of time they have been waiting for a fully adapted property.

As at 01/07/2025, the number of Band 1 applicants on the housing register seeking fully wheelchair adapted accommodation is 96 and those requiring fully accessible accommodation with a level access shower is 171. A breakdown of each applicant’s needs with the date they joined the housing register, and the date of their Band 1 priority is attached.


9. Number of adapted properties per area:
o The number of adapted properties in each area, e.g, Evington, Spinney Hill, Belgrave etc. Also list by type e.g partially, fully adapted etc

A breakdown of fully wheelchair accessible and partially adapted properties by ward is as follows:

	
	Fully Wheelchair Accessible Properties
	Partially Adapted Properties
	Total

	Abbey
	5
	148
	153

	Aylestone
	0
	51
	51

	Beaumont Leys
	9
	93
	102

	Belgrave
	4
	127
	131

	Braunstone Park & Rowley Fields
	26
	314
	340

	Castle
	0
	20
	20

	Evington
	5
	153
	158

	Eyres Monsell
	7
	360
	367

	Fosse
	3
	53
	56

	Humberstone & Hamilton
	8
	115
	123

	Knighton
	0
	6
	6

	North Evington
	6
	82
	88

	Rushey Mead
	1
	17
	18

	Saffron
	14
	120
	134

	Spinney Hills
	0
	9
	9

	Stoneygate
	2
	6
	8

	Thurncourt
	2
	288
	290

	Troon
	1
	37
	38

	Westcotes
	1
	38
	39

	Western
	23
	316
	339

	Wycliffe
	1
	26
	27


Question 10: Clipstone Road


10. Clipstone Road (2019)
o Were the individual/family that won the bid for this property on Clipstone Road in 2019, in Band 1 at the time and joined the housing register after 2016. 

As per Qs. 6 & 7

If possible, please also include any accompanying policies or criteria used to define and classify a property as "adapted" or "non-adapted."

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.

If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 

Internal Review

Information Governance & Risk
Email: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk
